Minutes of the Board of Trustees (BoT)
Regular Meeting

. MANCHESTER

October 6™, 2025

Members Present: Tom Deck (President), Anthony MacLaurin, Scott Swinarton, Jim Lewis (Tree
Warden & Road Commissioner) [via Zoom]|

Members Absent: Nina Mooney

Others Present: Donald Brodie (Village Clerk), Sarah McClintock (Village Treasurer & Tax Collector),
Terry Findeisen (Zoning Administrative Officer)

Call to Order: 4:30 PM by Deck.

1. Approval of the Agenda

Deck opened the meeting and noted the need to add an executive session to discuss probable or
pending civil litigation as new business, towards the end of the meeting. MacLaurin stated that
he had an update on the Village entry signs under new business.

Motion: To approve the agenda, with the additions of an Executive Session as a new item 10 and a
discussion of the Village entry signs under new business.

Motion made by Deck. Motion seconded by MacLaurin.
Motion approved, unanimously.
2. Approval of the Draft Minutes
McClintock asked to be added the list of absent members in the minutes.
Motion: To approved of the draft minutes for the regular September meeting, as posted.
Motion made by MacLaurin. Motion seconded by Swinarton.
Motion approved, unanimously.

3. Monthly Reports

a. Road Commissioner
Lewis noted that Mowrey had provided nothing in lieu of major updates and that all
Highways processes were running normally. Deck added that Alan Mowrey had reported
to him that the new flail mower attachment purchased this past month worked
terrifically, noting some roadside mowing work Mowrey had recently performed using
it.

b. Tree Warden
Lewis asked Deck to update the Board on an item of tree business. Deck noted that the
Holiday Tree was either dying or diseased and that Lewis had asked a local expert to
take a look at it soon. Deck also noted that Mowrey had a plan in case the tree needed to
be replaced, specifically that a pipe could be put in the ground and a temporary tree

Page 1



Minutes of the Board of Trustees (BoT)

Regular Meeting

could be placed there for decorating. Deck also noted that the large oak tree outside the
Miner Cottage had been removed and that follow up with the property owner about the
replacement tree(s) for the removal was pending Curan VanDerWielen’s return from
vacation, in a few days.

MacLaurin inquired about the status of the trees outside the Equinox Junior Shops.
Lewis stated that he was considering planting dogwood trees sometime in the Spring
given the ongoing drought. Deck added a note on how Mowrey waters trees and agreed
that all remaining plantings for the fiscal year should be delayed until the Spring.

Village Manager
Deck noted that VanDerWielen had left a written report for the Board and highlighted
several aspects of the report. Deck noted a 91% rate of current collections on taxes and
work on collections. A short conversation ensued regarding options for the creation of a
street tree inventory, with Deck indicating that he was in favor of developing a narrower
inventory in-house with assistance from Vermont Urban and Community Forestry
Program (VUCEFP), rather than pay ~$12,000 for a wider-scope product offered by
Bartlett Tree Experts. MacLaurin asked who prepared the previous 1995 version. Lewis
answered that Bartlett had been contracted to create it. Deck added that no decision
would be made immediately and both options would continue to be reviewed ahead of
the next fiscal year.

Deck stated that accounting cleanup work was still ongoing. McClintock expanded on
the basis of the cleanup, its origins, and the ‘reset’ for at least 3-years following the
finalization of the work. Deck noted ongoing frustration with NEMRC and that he and
VanDerWielen are planning a meeting with Representative Kathleen James to express
interest in the state moving away from NEMRC as a platform, altogether. Brodie noted
that conversations at the state level had been brought up in the past, but no clear action
was taken. Deck added an anecdote from VanDerWielen where at a recent BCRC-
sponsored event, participants had spent a significant amount of time expressing
frustration with NEMRC software.

Deck also commented on ongoing work regarding the creation of a Village strategy
document and a new set of priorities for future budgeting and project implementation.
McClintock agreed with the purpose of setting such a strategy and added that this would
likely alleviate the phenomenon of wide swings in the tax rate, as experienced in recent
years. Brodie added that he had spoken with VanDerWielen recently about it, and agreed
with the logic, giving an anecdote about a previous period of Village administration
where a continuously lowering tax rate was prioritized only for major unbudgeted
projects to appear, which would spike the rate in specific years.

Page 2



Minutes of the Board of Trustees (BoT)
Regular Meeting

MANCHESTER

d. Zoning Administrator
Findeisen provided an update on recent work conducted by her office, starting with a
description of recent permitting. These included several sign permits and violation
resolutions, a permit for some roofing work and the installation of roof-mounted solar
panels, a second roofing permit to replace a section of slate roofing with “synthetic
slate”, and a permit for fencing and the creation of a chicken coop. Swinarton asked if
the solar panels were being placed on the backyard barn of the property in question.
Findeisen affirmed that they were. Brodie added that he knew the property well and that
the proposed panels would only barely be visible from the North side of the street and
not at all from the abutting golf course, adding some information about the intended use
of the energy generated from the panels.

Deck added that he had attended a recent Development Review Board (DRB) meeting
on the “synthetic slate” roofing work, and expressed interest in how well the new
material looked. Swinarton noted that such imitation materials are improving
significantly. A short discussion ensued regarding the product and other local buildings
using similar materials.

Findeisen added an update on the registration of Short-Term Rentals (STRs), the status
of individual registration and enforcement cases, and ongoing efforts to reach out to
brokerage platforms for assistance in ensuring compliance. Findeisen noted a specific
complaint against a Main Street STR marketed under “Storied Stay” by all of its
surrounding neighbors regarding trespassing, off leash dogs, and guests approaching the
neighbors angrily. Findeisen noted the challenge in defining appropriate parking for
STRs against the rooms present. Deck noted that he was aware of the issue and
recommended it as business the Planning Commission could review in the future.

Findeisen also noted complaints about drivers using driveways are turn-arounds in Main
Street and elsewhere. Swinarton noted that such behavior has been observable for
decades, especially on Pond Road, and was unsure what was possible to alleviate the
issue. Deck agreed, noting that he saw as a Main Street resident but did not see it as a
significant issue. MacLaurin noted that some cars occasionally parked in his drive, and
that that was a different but significant issue.

Findeisen also provided updates on a few other upcoming or ongoing issues, such as the
installation of black window trim on a Main Street home, the ongoing resolution of a
zoning violation with Burr and Burton Academy, and a possible new structure at the
Ekwanok Country Club.

e. Treasurer & Tax Collector
McClintock provided a review of the account balances, noting a healthy cash balance
across all accounts and a recent early execution of the $30,000 Highways Reserve
allocation for this fiscal year. McClintock also presented the “gap” report provided by
VanDerWielen, noting the strong cash position relative to the original projection for this

Page 3



Minutes of the Board of Trustees (BoT)
Regular Meeting

MANCHESTER

point in the fiscal year and that expenditures were less intensive than originally
expended for this period. MacLaurin asked why aggregate cash was so much higher at
this point in the year relative to last year. McClintock noted that effective comparisons
needed to be moved up a month relative to last year because of the earlier billing cycle
used by Village this year for property tax bills. McClintock also noted ongoing progress
with regard to the accounting clean up, specifically work regarding the accounting of the
Fidelity reserves, and that a one-time adjustment would be executed probably within the
month to sever much of the inaccurate information from years prior to last, not included
in the scope of the cleanup.

McClintock then provided an update on the collection of delinquent taxes, noting that
the report was slightly out of date as ~$25,000 in delinquencies had been collected in
between the time of printing and the meeting. McClintock also noted that she had not
reviewed but would like to review perhaps at the next meeting the Capital Expenditure
Plan VanDerWielen was preparing.

f. Clerk
Brodie noted no updates with regard to the Clerk’s office.

4. Appointment of Nan Forti as DRB Alternate
Deck introduced the topic of the appointment. Brodie noted that he believed in the importance
of the appointment to ensure no future quorum issues with the convening of the DRB. Brodie
added that Forti was recently asked to attend a DRB meeting and provided excellent questions
and points to the Board. Deck asked if it was possible for members of the Trustees to be
nominated as alternates, should there be a shortage of volunteers in such a matter and the need
arise in a short-order. Deck added that he understood why little overlap was now tolerated
between the Trustees and DRB membership, but that it could help in issues of quorum. Brodie
stated that he believed it was possible in a non-voting capacity, but by appointing Forti, she
would be given the capability to vote when serving.

Motion: To appoint Nan Forti as DRB Alternate
Motion made by Deck. Motion seconded by Swinarton.
Motion approved, unanimously.

5. Appointment of Nicole Mata as DAC Member
Brodie explained the background of Mata’s appointment and how impressed he and other Board
members were with her at a recent DRB hearing, after which it was discussed with her to bring
her on Village DAC. Findeisen added that given that Hong Campbell had recently attended a
pair of meetings due to a medical issue, that adding another DAC member would also assist
with the quality of review and reaching quorum.

Motion: To appoint Nicole Mata as DAC Member

Motion made by Deck. Motion seconded by Swinarton.

Page 4



Minutes of the Board of Trustees (BoT)
Regular Meeting & uﬁ N MANCHESTER
% B

B

Motion approved, unanimously.

A short discussion ensued regarding the procedure of serving as an alternate in practice and
possible persons who could serve on Village boards.

6. Review of Draft Tri-Party Agreement with Northshire Community Courthouse (NCC)
Deck introduced the topic of discussion, noting that the NCC has been working with the Town
of Manchester Center to develop a lease in order to give the non-profit site control ahead of the
application for certain grants, and that the draft agreement presented facilitated such a lease,
with the Village included in certain terms. Deck added that Village Counsel’s comments were
included before asking McClintock to present her thoughts. McClintock reviewed counsel’s list
of comments, noting that it effectively asks Village to be added to the list of recipients of certain
information to be provided by NCC in terms of project timing, scope, etc. McClintock noted
that she would mark up the agreement to incorporate counsel’s and NCC’s comments and send
it to the Town. Deck added that he believed no further action was needed by the Village beyond
that, at this time.

7. Update on Village Strategy Document
Deck introduced the topic of discussion, noting that this was in reference to the written
materials provided by VanDerWielen for the meeting. Deck encouraged the Board to review and
share comments about what was written. Deck noted that this was a part of the creation of long-
term planning as intended by the Board when creating the Village Manager position. MacLaurin
commented that a list might be easier to review and requested an outline from VanDerWielen of
the contents of the proposed strategy.

8. Public Comments

No public comments were raised.
Old Business:

Deck asked about the status of the discussion of stenciling the marble rock at the intersection of
Union and Main Streets. MacLaurin expressed surprise at Mooney’s suggestion in the previous
meeting of putting “Manchester” on the rock instead of “Manchester Village”. MacLaurin added
that it had been left at scoping and acquiring a cost estimate for such work. Findeisen confirmed
that that was where the discussion had been left and added that Mowrey should be included in
the next round of discussion. Deck agreed and further agreed that the text should be
“Manchester Village” and an established date or something similar.

Deck provided a brief update on the thinking behind the development of a street tree inventory,
noting that he believed the scope of the current discussion was along the Main Street historic
corridor moving South, including starting to move trees further into the right-of-way, starting
with the replacements in front of the Miner Cottage. Deck added that this would be a long-term
plan for tree preservation and replacement. MacLaurin disagreed with the prospect of planting
trees closer to the street but added that further review would be necessary.

Page 5



Minutes of the Board of Trustees (BoT)
Regular Meeting

MANCHESTER

New Business:

MacLaurin discussed the ordering of new entry signs for the Village, describing the new design
with the new logo and suggesting the Village be prepared to spend ~$800.00 for them.
MacLaurin added that he believed an additional sign should be created in the next year for the
Union and West Road entries for the Village.

Motion: To enter Executive Session to discuss Pending or Probable Civil Litigation (5:22pm).
Motion made by Deck. Motion seconded by MacLaurin.
Motion approved, unanimously.

Motion: To exit Executive Session to discuss Pending or Probable Civil Litigation (5:38pm).
Motion made by Deck. Motion seconded by Swinarton.
Motion approved, unanimously.

No action was taken.

Adjournment: 5:40 PM.

Motion: To adjourn.
Motion made by MacLaurin. Motion seconded by Swinarton.
Motion approved, unanimously.

The next regular meeting of the Board of Trustees will be held at 4:30 PM on Monday, November 3,
2025.

Respectfully submitted,

Curan VanDerWielen, Village Manager

Page 6



